# MINUTES OF THE CITY OF LAS VEGAS CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2017 AT 5:30 P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

MAYOR:

Tonita Gurulé-Girón

**COUNCILORS:** 

David L. Romero Barbara A. Casey Vincent Howell David A. Ulibarri, Jr.

ALSO PRESENT:

Richard Trujillo, City Manager Casandra Fresquez, City Clerk Corinna Laszlo-Henry, City Attorney Juan Montano, Sergeant at Arms

#### **CALL TO ORDER**

**ROLL CALL** 

## **PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE**

## **MOMENT OF SILENCE**

Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for a moment of silence to recognize Senator Pete Domenici with a statement that she prepared. City Clerk Fresquez read the statement into the record.

September 13, 2017, Mayor's statement regarding Senator Pete Domenici. "It is with sadness that I must report to you the passing of State Senator Pete Domenici. A US Senator representing New Mexicans for nearly four decades, Senator Domenici shaped US policy in many areas, including energy, fiscal responsibility and health parity for those suffering from mental illness. He was the longest-serving US Senator in New Mexico's history. Domenici was the son of Italian immigrants. His mother was an illegal immigrant, detained by the US during WWII. Senator Domenici was a living example of the contributions that immigrants, documented and otherwise, can bring to this nation, and he spoke out in their defense. When the City's watershed was compromised by the Viveash fire, Senator Domenici provided the City with \$2 million to rehab and restore the Taylor Well Fields. Domenici knew how to build consensus, and he knew how to work both sides of the aisle in order to forge common ground on contentious political issues. As such, he represented a spirit of good will and cooperation too often lacking in resent-day politics, and he will be missed by Republicans and Democrats alike. Domenici's sons, Pete Domenici Jr. and Adam Laxalt, also serve the public in their father's footsteps. Pete Domenici Jr. is an attorney in the area of the environmental and natural resource law, and Adam Laxalt is Nevada's Attorney General. In honor of the late senator, and of the good works he did for the Nation, for New Mexico, and for the City of Las Vegas, I, Tonita Gurulé-Girón, Mayor of Las Vegas, New Mexico, declare this day, September 13<sup>th</sup>, Pete Domenici Day. The City of Las Vegas is also flying its flags at half-mast today in Senator Domenici's Memory."

Mayor Gurule-Giron asked City Clerk Fresquez to also read the proclamation, proclaiming September 13, 2017 as "Senator Pete Domenici Day" and encourage all in our community to take inspiration from his example of public service.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón advised that his family was contacted and notified and will follow up with the proclamation. She thanked everyone for sharing this moment with them.

#### **APPROVAL OF AGENDA**

Councilor Casey made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Councilor Romero seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the following:

Vincent Howell Yes David L. Romero Yes Barbara Casey Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

#### **PUBLIC INPUT**

Ms. Cindy Collins spoke about Mainstreet de Las Vegas and getting invited by the National Trust for Historic Preservation to apply for \$150,000 for the Downtown Historic City owned building that has cultural meaning to the community, that being the E. Romero Hose & Fire building on Bridge Street. Ms. Collins added that the renovations would be to the first floor of the building so the building can become a fire truck and Acequia Museum. Ms. Collins also mentioned that the E. Romero building was not only the first volunteer fire department in the South West but its location is unique and was strategically planned to be placed right above the Acequia Madre to pump water to the horse drawn fire carts. Ms. Collins stated the application was accepted along with twenty four other Mainstreets in America and Las Vegas was the only application in New Mexico. Ms. Collins further stated that there is a social media competition by the National Trust, Social Media Press Television, to vote for your favorite Mainstreet in America and City Manager Trujillo had been informed about these details along with Robert Archuleta, Chief Billy Montoya, Cabrini Martinez, the New Mexico Mainstreet Staff and the Board. Ms. Collins also stated that a marketing strategy was done to get the word out, which starts September 25<sup>th</sup> and asked if they could allow Mainstreet to work with the Community Development Staff and possibly Cisneros to get the word out to vote for Las Vegas.

Mr. Wid Slick spoke about Mainstreet New Mexico Tourism and the City of Las Vegas partnering up for a yearlong \$93,000 advertising campaign for the winter and added that Las Vegas businesses could use the help during the winter time and a few overnight visitors can make a difference. Mr. Slick stated that Community Development designed a few pages of artwork, the fourth page of the artwork is proposed for four billboards between Raton and Albuquerque and this winter's billboard will follow with spring, summer and fall billboards, so every car on Interstate 25 can see. Mr. Slick further stated that the first and second pages of the artwork are two advertorials that will be in the New Mexico magazine in

November and again in April with two more advertorials and the third page is the artwork for a two page spread in the New Mexico True Adventure Guide, which comes out in December and will be viewed by over a million online and in print.

#### **Discussion Items**

1. Resolution #17-35, 2019-2023 Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan ("ICIP") for the City of Las Vegas Senior Center.

Community Services Director Pamela Marrujo and Senior Center Manager Wanda Salazar spoke about considering approving the resolution for the ICIP for the Senior Center which would be a five year plan and is an update from last year and added that DFA requires seeking legislative funds for any projects.

Councilor Howell asked if this was strictly for the San Miguel or the Pecos center. Mrs. Marrujo stated there is a plan for each site so it would be for the Las Vegas, Pecos and San Miguel centers and the City does a separate ICIP for other departments but this is specifically for the senior centers.

Councilor Howell stated there was a recent remodel to the senior center and asked what else would be done.

Community Services Director Marrujo stated there is a wish list for things they may need, specifically kitchen equipment to replace the HVAC units And added that there are needs for the different senior centers and they are specified with estimated costs.

Councilor Casey asked if they have an ICIP plan for San Miguel and does that mean they anticipate opening that center again.

Community Services Director Marrujo stated they do for limited hours as it's not in the budget to open it full time like Pecos and there is an agreement with San Miguel Delgado to open for minimal hours, like three hours a day; they would make the food here, then deliver it to San Miguel and provide it to the seniors.

Councilor Casey stated if they got the kitchen equipment would that change to opening it up longer.

Wanda Salazar stated in the San Miguel ICIP plan funds are needed in 2020 and not 2019 so for fiscal year 2018-2019 they want to try to get back into the San Miguel Senior Center and start services and in the future they can look into opening for more hours but they need to see how much of a need is out there. Ms. Salazar added that It will be the three hours this next year, with the ICIP plan they hope to grow and expand the program to add more hours.

Councilor Howell asked Mrs. Marrujo if the Comedor Pasqual is providing service at the senior center.

Ms. Salazar stated they are no longer and for the time they were providing services after the renovations occurred and moved back to the senior center, numbers were very low and it was rare to see more than five or ten people. Ms. Salazar further stated that during the renovations they contracted with Our Lady of Sorrows parish hall at that location, they saw fifty to sixty people and it made sense to move away from the senior center and have the parish hall twice a week and they chose to close the senior center and open another day at the parish hall.

Councilor Howell stated there was supposed to be a contract between the City and the parish hall and Comedor de San Pascual and if that was taken care of with an MOU.

Ms. Salazar stated there was one being worked on but is not sure it got finalized.

Councilor Casey stated a previous employee tried to get an MOU together, but the building is so old that with one change they are required to redo the whole building and the church doesn't have the money to do that. Councilor Casey added that the Comedor de San Pascual would not have a contract with the city but with the church and they pay \$2 a year for the use of the parish hall.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked what the pleasure of the board was, and they all agreed to place on consent agenda.

2. Resolution #17-33 Budget Adjustment resolution.

Finance Director Ann Marie Gallegos spoke about fiscal year 2018, all the housing funds and carry overs of the Capital Funding Program (CFP) Finance Director Gallegos explained that the CFP 2013 through CFP 2016 were carry overs and adjustments that housing is needing to approve and the E911 grant is through the police department for \$324,329 the total dollar amount was \$357,460, which is the amount needing to be approved.

Councilor Casey thanked Mrs. Gallegos for the clarification.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked what the pleasure of the board was and they all agreed to place on consent agenda.

 Professional Engineering Services to include Grants Consulting, Planning, Design and Engineering Services, for the City of Las Vegas Public Works Department/Municipal Airport. (RFP 2018-03)

Public Works Director Veronica Gentry spoke about approval for engineering firm best qualified to provide on call services at the airport, which was Molzen Corbin. Proposals were based on criteria set from FAA.

Councilor Howell asked who the other participants were.

Public Works Director Gentry advised they were Delta, Armstrong, and Bahamian.

Councilor Howell inquired about the scope of work.

Public Works Director Gentry advised it would consist of planning, design, any technical stuff at the airport and grant writing for funds at the airport and any construction that would come, including a five year ICIP plan they are working on for the airport.

Public Works Director Gentry also advised the five year plan was based on the criteria and submittal of their RFPs.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked if the scope of work has been identified.

Public Works Director Gentry advised the scope of work is in the ICIP plan.

Councilor Howell asked about the planning and designing.

Public Works Director Gentry advised that the planning and designing can consist of putting a pappies, which are lighting on the air strip to be changed to LED lights, installing fencing around the whole area which are criteria that need to be met by the FAA.

Councilor Howell asked if they would be visiting with the airport board to get feedback.

Public Works Director Gentry advised that they could set up something with the board.

Councilor Howell advised that would be a good idea because those on the board are pilots and have experience flying in and out of airports and give good feedback.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón advised that if the board gives feedback, we have to be certain we stick to the actual scope of work because it has to be consistent.

Public Works Director Gentry also advised that it has to be consistent with the FAA rules and regulations and cannot go beyond that.

Councilor Howell stated they should know that too but would like to see if they wanted to give feedback on the project and asked what would be the date of completion.

Public Works Director Gentry advised she would discuss that on the next agenda item.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked if there was a timeline schedule attached or was it based off the scope of work.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked what the pleasure of the board was and they all agreed to place on consent agenda.

4. Resolution No. 17-32, supporting the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Grant Agreement, LVS-17-02 and sponsoring match funds.

Public Works Director Gentry advised she is requesting approval of resolution 17-32 FAA grant and sponsoring match funds. Public Works Director Gentry stated that there is currently a project for snow removal equipment in which ninety percent will be paid through the FAA, five percent by the city and five percent by the New Mexico state aviation, to purchase the snow removal equipment.

Councilor Casey stated that the State has \$28,025; is that our match and does the other come from the FAA. Councilor Casey added that the snow removal equipment which is \$350,000 and a broom is \$200,000 was a lot of money for equipment. Councilor Casey asked if the employees were trained for that equipment, so they don't have the same problem which happened in the past.

Public Works Director Gentry advised when the equipment is obtained they will come in and provide training and that equipment will only be used at the airport and both employees as well as the street supervisor will be trained on that piece of equipment as FAA does require the employees to be trained on that type of equipment.

Councilor Howell spoke about being upset with previous equipment purchased and sent back and mentioned that the Council was also told that the manufacturer then was going to provide training on that equipment like the one now and is still not sure why that equipment was sent back.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón advised that was discussed in a previous public meeting.

Councilor Howell asked if the equipment will be used anywhere other than the airport for snow removal.

Public Works Director Gentry advised no not within the City limits.

Councilor Howell asked what equipment was utilized for our streets.

Public Works Director Gentry advised they have two snow plows, a grader and a salt truck and the employees have been trained on those pieces of equipment for several years.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked what the pleasure of the board was and they all agreed to place on consent agenda.

5. Grant Application through the Department of Public Safety for the Las Vegas Police Department.

Police Chief Juan Montano and Beatrice Salazar spoke about approval of \$24,300 to increase the streets crime unit and maintain undercover vehicles as the region four grant had recently changed investigations to street crimes unit.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked to explain prior year's outcomes and the cases generated in 2014 to current and only list 2016, 133 cases generated and arrests made and drug cases. Mayor Gurule-Giron mentioned that at the symposium, District Attorney, Tom Clayton was addressing a lot of the numbers and wanted to know if these numbers were consistent with the district attorney's office.

Mrs. Salazar stated the number of cases generated in 2014-2015 were when they operated as the region four task force.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón stated she noticed a dramatic drop in 2016 and asked what happened in 2016.

Mrs. Salazar advised they were operating under the streets crime unit, the numbers were lower before because it was only their agents operating and not the whole region.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón stated the numbers don't represent the region for 2016; the general funding must be represented by the region.

Mrs. Salazar advised they do not and that it can be local and that's how they applied for the 2016 grant.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked if that would impact the funding they receive should the numbers be lower.

Mrs. Salazar advised no it would be in their favor due to numbers increasing at the local level.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked what the pleasure of the board was and they all agreed to place on consent agenda.

6. Grant Application through the New Mexico's Attorney General's Office for the Las Vegas Police Department.

Police Chief Montaño spoke about requesting approval to apply for funding in the amount of \$28,028 to purchase property and evidence system in the department.

Councilor Howell asked if they are purchasing property or equipment.

Police Chief Montaño advised the \$28,028 in funding would be for the evidence equipment.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked if the department consists of 36 officers that patrol 24/7 and respond to 27,000 calls per year, investigate 3,000 cases per year and \$15,000 pieces of evidence and if those numbers are consistent with the database.

City Manager Trujillo advised they are consistent with the database.

Police Chief Montano advised the 36 officers are the number of FTE certified police officers.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón advised she wanted to ensure that secretaries were not included as part of the 36 FTE officers.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked what the pleasure of the board and they all agreed to place on consent agenda.

7. Grant Application through the Department of Justice for the Las Vegas Police Department.

Police Chief Montaño spoke about requesting approval to apply for a grant of \$11,681 for equipment for police vehicles and body cameras for San Miguel County Sheriff's Department and the reason for this grant is they are a disparate county which is why they apply for a grant for both agencies.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked if this grant will be used for the small cameras and if they range from \$70 to \$900 each.

Police Chief Montaño advised that the grant is for the Sheriff's Department, and he did not get price quotes for the Sheriff's Department.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked of the \$11,000, how much would go to the City.

Police Chief Montaño advised half of the \$11,000 and Mrs. Salazar advised \$5,840.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked what would our half be used for, and would the county only be using theirs for the cameras.

Police Chief Montaño advised it would be used for equipment for unmarked police cars and Mrs. Salazar advised the county will use theirs for the nine cameras that total \$5,836.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked when this needs to be expended.

Mrs. Salazar advised by September 30, 2018.

City Attorney Corinna Lazlo-Henry advised that on Monday nights Commission San Miguel County meeting, they did approve the agreement included in the packet.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked what the pleasure of the board was and they all agreed to place on consent agenda.

8. Pass through funding through the Department of Finance and Administration E-911 Grant Fund for the Las Vegas Police Department.

Police Chief Montaño spoke about requesting approval for funding \$324,329 to operate the E-911 system for the Las Vegas City Police Department and the Department of Public Safety Office.

Councilor Howell asked if State Police have their own system.

Police Chief Montaño advised the funding comes to their agency and they provide them with pass through funds, where they attend trainings.

Councilor Howell asked if they are using the same function as State Police.

Police Chief Montaño advised no they are the primary PSAS.

Councilor Howell asked if the system will be at State Police.

Police Chief Montaño advised no, a few years ago they upgraded theirs and they are the fiscal agency and there are yearly trainings and we do the request through them and provide them with the funding for these trainings.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón requested that a budget worksheet be attached the next time for shared agencies showing specific line items being used with projected costs or anticipated costs for State Police and the County. Mayor Tonita Gurule-Giron requested that worksheet be placed in the packet for the regular meeting.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked what the pleasure of the board and they all agreed to place on consent agenda.

9. Grant Application through the Wal-Mart Foundation for the Las Vegas Police Department.

Police Chief Montaño spoke about requesting approval to apply for a grant provided by Wal-Mart in the amount of \$2,500 for promotional supplies and handouts for children for Community Outreach Programs.

Councilor Howell asked how often they present to the schools.

Police Chief Montaño advised for this fiscal, year eight or nine presentations on active shooter trainings at Robertson, West and Luna, which where the big presentations and they are working with the District Attorney's Office on a schedule and attend Career Day in Villanueva and also do Stranger Danger. Police Chief Montano stated that last year they did about 160 different presentations.

Councilor Howell asked how the teachers and staff receive the presentations.

Police Chief Montaño advised they like them to be hands on with the schools and they are active with the different schools and also done presentations in Pecos at the request of the DA's office.

Councilor Howell asked of the \$2,500 how much would be used for materials and for presentation incentives.

Police Chief Montaño advised it would be used for promotional items like the Fire Department, such as badges and other promotional items representing the Las Vegas Police Department.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked what the pleasure of the board was and they all agreed to place on consent agenda.

10. Purchase of a Camel 900 Sewer catch basin cleaner truck.

Utilities Director Maria Gilvarry and Waste Water employee Jeff Rudolph spoke about requesting to purchase a 900 sewer truck that cleans out

sewer lines or when there's flooding as they have two vehicles one is an eleven year old Camel in need of maintenance but is still in use due to their back up which is twenty three years old vehicle with safety concerns and is currently in the shop. Utilities Director Gilvarry added that once that is fixed the eleven year old vehicle will need to be taken in for maintenance and is barely operational; this year they budgeted to replace the Camel and they found one under governmental contract and quoted others but the governmental services contract had a better deal.

Councilor Howell asked if the equipment is different than the vactor truck.

Utilities Director Gilvarry advised the twenty three year old truck is a vactor truck they use but is on its last leg as well as the eleven year old Camel.

Councilor Casey asked what fund is 611 that it will be paid out of.

Utilities Director Gilvarry advised it is an equipment line item.

Finance Director Gallegos advised it's a waste water replacement fund. Every year they set aside money for equipment they are in need of and the funds are available and placed in their budget.

Councilor Casey asked if it's purchased when they will get it.

Mr. Rudolph advised about four or five months.

Councilor Romero asked when the trucks are supposed to be replaced, is it every five or ten years.

Utilities Director Gilvarry advised heavy equipment has a life span of five to ten years; they use them as long as they can.

Councilor Romero stated it would be good to replace them every ten years.

Utilities Director Gilvarry advised she has her managers working on a ten or twenty year replacement plan and passenger vehicles they try to go a little longer, the plan will help to replace equipment on a regular schedule instead of when two vehicles breaking down at the same time.

Councilor Ulibarri, Jr. asked if there is a plan on how to maintain the trucks, like a schedule or a form.

Utilities Director Gilvarry advised Managers and staff have maintenance plans to get the maintenance done on the vehicles and there's a good mechanic at Solid Waste so he tries to maintain regular maintenance on the vehicles to last longer.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked what the pleasure of the board and they all agreed to place on consent agenda.

11. Resolution No. 17-30 for drinking water loan No. 3624-DW for the Cabin Site Tank Rehabilitation.

Utilities Director Gilvarry spoke about approval of the resolution to execute funding and grant agreement, it is an \$841,000 agreement, \$210,000 loan \$630,750 would be grant funds. Utilities Director Gilvarry added that the project has already been designed and ready to bid and if approved will schedule with the treatment plant staff for the rehabilitation. Utilities Director Gilvarry stated that the principle amount is for \$841,000 but it will be corrected to the \$210,000.

Councilor Howell asked if it is construction dollars.

Utilities Director Gilvarry advised it is for rehabilitation and this will allow to take the tank down and get back into it and repair and replace what's needed from a previous inspection done.

Councilor Howell stated he thought we had this subject before.

Utilities Director Gilvarry advised it was done before on the Camp Luna Tank and did an ROV which is a Remote Operated Vehicle inspection and a lot of things were missed; this time around she decided to do a physical inspection so the engineer could plan it accurately.

Councilor Howell asked when it's anticipated to be completed.

Utilities Director Gilvarry advised it will take six months and planning in November or December start time, so June or July of next year. They do need to coordinate with plant staff because they will be on a 24 hour rotation so they are coordinating around everyone to make sure they get their vacations before and after so they are fully staffed.

Councilor Howell asked if they have gone out for bids yet.

Utilities Director Gilvarry advised no, they are getting ready to and plans have been completed.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked what the pleasure of the board and they all agreed to place on consent agenda.

12. Award request for bids # 2018-4 for Clarifloc C-358 Polymer for the Water Treatment Plant to sole bidder Polydyne, Inc.

Utilities Director Gilvarry spoke about going out to bid every year and have one respondent every year which is Polydyne and they came in with the lowest bid of \$0.65 per pound and there's been an increase over the last few years. Utilities Director Gilvarry stated she did call to clarify it wasn't an inversion of their numbers and found out the price did go up across the country and they need this product as part of the treatment process. Utilities Director Gilvarry stated she will be working with finance and city attorney in the future to find a different way to acquire this and not go out for bids every year.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked if it is a sole source bidder and can he be a sole source.

Utilities Director Gilvarry advised she did not use the sole source process; they did use the bidding process.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón advised she believes the State Procurement Code requires yearly contracts and can look into the sole source bidding and possibly negotiate price. Mayor Gurule-Giron asked what the total cost of the supply would be.

Utilities Director Gilvarry advised \$292.50 for four hundred pounds, she believes they spend \$30-40,000 per year.

Councilor Casey stated Polymer breaks down the turbidity in the water and Bradner is offline so would the turbidity be higher now.

Utilities Director Gilvarry advised the turbidity varies on rainfall, whether they are using Storrie water with river water or all river water or all Storie's water so it changes.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked what the pleasure of the board and they all agreed to place on consent agenda.

13. Award request for bids # 2018-5 for liquid aluminum sulfate for the Water Treatment Plant to Chemtrade Chemicals US LLC.

Utilities Director Gilvarry spoke about aluminum sulfate being another product being used to coagulate and reducing wear and tear in the filters. There were two bidders, Chemtrade and Thatcher, Chemtrade has been used for several years as they produce a high quality aluminum sulfate and they came in with a low bid.

Councilor Casey asked how much she estimates the cost per year and the difference between dry ton and wet ton.

Utilities Director Gilvarry advised she cannot give her a number off the top of her head and will at the next meeting. Utilities Director Gilvarry stated it is a liquid product and you can get it in dry or wet form.

Councilor Casey advised she was concerned after reading through the packet; it's corrosive and dangerous and stated she assumes the staff has been trained to protect themselves.

Utilities Director Gilvarry advised yes and once the product is shipped it's put into a storage tank and staff do not come into physical contact with it,

and that tank goes directly to the pumps and blends it with the water and with the Polymer to get the coagulant and staff never have to touch it. Utilities Director Gilvarry added that there is plenty of safety equipment if they should come in contact with it.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked to explain the safety measures that have increased since the last accident.

Utilities Director Gilvarry advised at Solid Waste an employee fell off the back of a vehicle and the job she was doing did not require her to climb up to do it, so that process has changed and now there is always a two person response which will avoid that occurring again. Utilities Director Gilvarry stated she has been in contact with the employee and she's been through therapy and excited to come back.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón asked what the pleasure of the board and they all agreed to place on consent agenda.

#### **EXECUTIVE SESSION**

## **ADJOURN**

ATTEST:

Councilor Casey made a motion to adjourn. Councilor Romero and Councilor Ulibarri, Jr. seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the following:

David L. Romero YES Barbara Casey YES
Vincent Howell YES David A. Ulibarri, Jr. YES

City Clerk Fresquez re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón

Casandra Fresquez, City Clerk